Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
June 14, 2016

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was
held Tuesday, June 14, 2016 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler,
Commissioner Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Eber Warren and Commissioner Cliff
Braly.

MEMBERS ABSENT: none

OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; Nick & Val Calcavecchia;
Carol Wright, President of MBG&CC; and Ben Hollowell.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a
moment of silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance. Mayor Potter
also reminded everyone that today is Flag Day and gave a brief history of the flag.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the June 14, 2016 BOC meeting
agenda. Commissioner Casey asked to add Animal Control as #3 under new business.
Commissioner Braly asked to add Townhall Repair as #4 under new business.
Commissioner Warren moved to approve the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to May 10, 2016 meeting minutes
before approving. Commissioner Warren asked the incorrect date typo on the minutes
be corrected. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the minutes as amended. All
ayes.

Public comments:
Minnesott Beach Golf & Country Club
1. Carol Wright thanked the board for considering a change to the policy of the
Town’s website. She reported the Town of Oriental uses its webpage as a
source of information about events that are happening around town.

2. Valeria Calcavecchia reported she is working on a Minnesott Beach
Community Day Event which would include a parade from the Townhall to
the MBG&CC.

Public Hearing: Commissioner Warren moved to close the regular meeting and go
into a Public Hearing regarding the 2016-2017 budget. All ayes. Commissioner
Warren read the proposed budget line items for 2016-2017, which is incorporated by
reference and hereby made a part of these minutes. Commissioner Warren moved to
close the Public Hearing and reopening the Regular meeting. All ayes.



Commissioner Warren moved to accept the proposed budget for fiscal year 2016-2017
with $0.13 per $100 evaluation. All ayes.

Town Manager's Report — One permit has been approved for a deck on a mobile
home in the trailer park. There is one permit application for a new house on Wild
Cherry Lane in Arlington Place that has not been approved yet.

Town Manager passed out Chamber of Commerce mission statement, membership
cost and benefits. Commissioner Warren said he did not see any benefits for
Minnesott Beach. Mayor Potter asked the board members and town manager to
review and make recommendations on joining at the next meeting.

Mayor Potter asked if a zoning permit for an on-frame modular home had been
applied for. Town Manager told him no.

Old Business - for discussion and possible motion and/or action.

1.

b

Arlington Place letter of credit — Mayor Potter reported he had written a letter to
Mr. Anderson a letter requesting road/street conditions in Arlington Place. He
received an email response on 6/10/16 noting that an update on the roads would be
forthcoming in two weeks.

Town website policy & newsletter - MBG&CC — Mayor Potter read the current
webpage policy and by reference is made a part of these minutes. Carol Wright
asked the board to consider broadening its policy to include things of interests to
the citizens and taxpayers of the town. Valarie Calcavecchia spoke to the
commissioners about the town partnering with the MBG&CC to sponsor a
Community Day parade and open house at the club. She asked for permission to
use the lot behind the Townhall to stage the parade that will move down Hardison
to CCD ending at the club. There will be lawn games, crazy golf, bingo and the
pool for folks to enjoy. Commissioners all voiced positive comments for
bringing the community together. Commissioner Fowler moved that the town
partner with the MBG&CC to help stage the 1°' Annual Community Day Parade
at the Town Hall and to use the town streets for said parade. All ayes. Carol
Wright asked if the town would allow the MBG&CC to put up a sign on the town
property along Hwy 306. Commissioner Braly asked what would be on the sign.
Carol Wright said the sign would indicate where to turn to get to the golf club.
Mayor Potter asked if the state would allow signs on the state right of way?
Commissioner Warren said he’s seen signs on state right of ways. Mayor Potter
said he was not sure the town could give permission to put sign on town property.
He would check.

Fox issues — Mayor Potter said he talked with Berkley Hill about the complaints
of foxes roaming in the town. He said he did not deal with wildlife and referred
him to the NC Wildlife Resources in Raleigh. Mayor Potter was given name and
numbers of 4 local folks who would trap/kill nuisance wildlife. Town Manager
talked with three of them for rates and procedures. There has to be at least $50
damage done by the animal before they can eliminate any animal. It has to be



4.

declared a nuisance. The cost could run upwards of $600 per trap site for a week.
Mayor Potter said he had not heard of any fox causing damage. The red fox is
less likely to have rabies than other wildlife. Commissioner Warren said he knew
of 3 fox dens and none had caused any damage to property or domestic pets. The
Town Manager said the citizens could call these same folks and contract with
them to remove nuisance animals.

Town Clean up Report — Commissioner Braly reported the Town Clean-up

was very successful. The final cost was $1,551.23 and by reference is made a part of
these minutes.

5

Drainage repairs on CCD — Commissioner Braly reported that 811 service will
locate all utilities at the corner of Hardison and CCD by the weekend. Ken Heath
has contracted to do the work. The work should be completed next week baring
any inclement weather. Commissioner Braly reported that Larry Hackney told
him of a large hole next to the asphalt on Phillips at Mrs. Johnson’s home. Larry
filled the hole with rock and sand. Commissioner Braly said part of the problem
is an old parallel line running by the current line and the old line is collapsing.
Commissioner Fowler said the engineer who repaired the line recommended the
old line not be taken out because of expense. Mayor Potter said he thought the
problems all stem from underground springs. Commissioner Braly said there is
slight noxious odor coming from the hole as well. Commissioner Fowler said the
town spent over $60,000 the last time on the new drain pipe there. Commissioner
Warren suggested the pipe be removed and put in a gutter line. Commissioner
Braly said the elevation of the inlet was not shot to grade which was another
reason for poor drainage. Commissioner Braly reported he is still trying to get
Tideland to come out and finish what they started in repairing the right of way on
Country Club Drive West. Mayor Potter ask he report next time what he finds
out.

NEW BUSINESS

i

8]

Mayor Potter read the Resolution Adopting the Municipal Records Retention and
Disposition Schedule and is by reference made a part of these minutes and can be
viewed at the town hall. Town Manager said the adoption of the Resolution was
required by the state. Commissioner Fowler moved to adopt. All ayes.

CAMA Planning Options — Mayor Potter reported he’d received and forwarded
to all an email regarding a new law that allows changes in reviewing CAMA
permits. He said currently the division administration does that and we are a part
of the Pamlico County Land Use Plan. He spoke to Tim Buck and the county is
leaving everything as is. Mayor Potter suggested we continue with option #3
with the county as the Division Administrator. Commissioner Warren moved to
continue with item 3: Division Administration. All ayes.

Animal control — Commissioner Casey reported that Dave Stewart has filed a
formal complaint of dogs roaming in his yard and up on his porch. They have no



collars or tags. She reported she had tried to contact the alleged owner but was
unable call them. In his complaint, Mr. Stewart said this has been going on for a
long time. Mayor Potter said town procedure would be to notify the owner. If
there is no response, the next step would be to have a board hearing. Town
Manager was asked to send a letter to owner.

4. Town Hall renovation — Commissioner Braly reported that larger garage doors
were needed and an increase in the square footage of the garage. A permanent
diesel dispenser is needed. He asked if any of the commissioners wanted to be
part of the planning process. Commissioner Fowler & Commissioner Warren
both said they’d be happy to participate. Commissioner Braly said he would
draw some sketches and make plans to get together with the office staff, Larry
and commissioners to discuss specific needs.

Financial Report: Commissioner Warren reported the Town is in good shape. The
town's current assets as of May 31, 2016 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking
$10,132.60: First Citizen's MM $248,852.61; First South Bank & Savings
$216,759.56; North Carolina Management Trust is $201,004.02; Petty Cash $50.00.
The town currently has 4 CDs at First South Bank & Savings ($40.000; $20,542.96;
$20,119.55; and $20,034.68). Total assets to the Town are a total of $799,223.77.

Commissioner Warren moved to adjourn. All ayes.

M/ /WQ(//W

—Denise Meyerson, Vowrf Clerk




